
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

February 27, 2023, 2:00 P.M. 
 

1. Call to Order 
2. Roll Call 
3. Approval of the Agenda 
4. Approval of the January 23, 2023 

Meeting Minutes 
5. Open to Public for Comments 

Items Not on the Agenda 
6. Agency Updates 

A. FDOT 

B. MPO Executive Director  
 

7. Committee Action 
A. Endorse Amendment #2 to the FY 

2023-2027 Transportation 
Improvement Program (TIP) and 
Authorizing Resolution 

 

 

 

B. Review and Comment on Draft Bike-
Ped Safety Ordinance 

C. Endorse Project Scope for Transit 
Disadvantaged Service Plan – Major 
Update 

D. Endorse Project Scope for Zero 
Emissions Transit Fleet Transition Plan  

E. Endorse FDOT’s PM2 and PM3 
Statewide Performance Targets 

8. Reports & Presentations* 

9. Member Comments 
10. Distribution Items 

A. Administrative Modifications to the FY 
2023-2027 TIP 

11. Next Meeting Date 
March 27, 2023 

12. Adjournment  
 

*May Require Committee Action 

PLEASE NOTE: 
The meetings of the advisory committees of the Collier Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) are open to the 
public and citizen input is encouraged. Any person wishing to speak on any scheduled  item may do so upon recognition 
of the Chairperson. Any person desiring to have an item placed on the agenda should contact the MPO Director at least 
14 days prior to the meeting date. Any person who decides to appeal a decision of the advisory committee will need a 
record of the proceedings pertaining thereto, and therefore may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is 
made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. In accordance with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting should 
contact the Collier Metropolitan Planning Organization 72 hours prior to the meeting by calling (239) 252-5814. The 
MPO’s planning process is conducted in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Related Statutes. 
Any person or beneficiary who believes that within the MPO’s planning process they have been discriminated against 
because of race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin, disability, or familial status may file a complaint with the 
Collier MPO Title VI Coordinator, Ms. Dusty Siegler (239) 252-5814 or by email at: 
Dusty.Siegler@colliercountyfl.gov, or in writing to the Collier MPO, attention: Ms. Siegler, at 2885 South Horseshoe 
Dr., Naples, FL 34104.   

Agenda CAC 
Citizens Advisory Committee 

IN-PERSON MEETING 
Transportation Management Services Department 

Main Conference Room  
2885 South Horseshoe Dr. 

Naples, FL, 34104  

mailto:Dusty.Siegler@colliercountyfl.gov


1 

 

CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE of the 
COLLIER METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

MEETING MINUTES 
January 23, 2023, 2:00 p.m. 

 
1. Call to Order  
 

Ms. Middelstaedt called the meeting to order at 2:01 p.m. 
 
2. Roll Call  
 

Ms. Siegler called the roll and confirmed a quorum was present.  
 
CAC Members Present  
Elaine Middelstaedt, Chair  
Dennis DiDonna 
Fred Sasser 
Karen Homiak 
Neal Gelfand, Vice-Chair 
 
CAC Members Absent 
Dennis Stalzer 
Josh Rincon  
Rick Hart 
Stephen Spahr 
 
MPO Staff  
Anne McLaughlin, Executive Director 
Dusty Siegler, Administrative Assistant 
 
Others Present 
Alex Showalter, Collier Area Transit 
Bill Howell, HW Lochner 
Jacob Stauffer, Collier Area Transit 
Lorraine Lantz, Collier County Transportation Planning 
Michelle Arnold, Collier County Public Transit Neighborhood Enhancement 
Nicole Harris, Stantec, FDOT Interstate Program Office 
 
  



2 

 

3. Approval of the Agenda  
 

Ms. Middelstaedt indicated that MPO Staff requested the order of the agenda be changed to have 
Reports and Presentations (Item 8) occur after Public Comments (Item 5). 

 
Ms. Homiak moved to approve the agenda. Mr. Sasser seconded.  Carried unanimously.  
 

4. Approval of the November 28, 2022 Meeting Minutes 
 
Ms. Homiak moved to approve the November 28, 2022 meeting minutes.  Mr. Sasser seconded.  

Carried unanimously.  
 

5. Public Comments for Items not on the Agenda  
 
 None. 
 

6. Agency Updates  
 

A. FDOT  

Ms. McLaughlin indicated that Ms. Victoria Peters was unable to make it to the meeting.  Ms. 
Peters wanted to inform everyone about the public outreach for the Interstate 75 South Corridor Master 
Plan.  There will be a Live Q&A Webinar on February 15, beginning at 6 p.m., and an in-person public 
meeting on February 16, from 5 to 7 p.m., at the North Collier Regional Park, Exhibit Hall. 
 

B. MPO Executive Director 

Ms. McLaughlin explained that there were a few handouts provided at the meeting: a 2020 census 
map provided by Don Scott (Lee MPO) for Item 7.D., and a revised Bicycle & Pedestrian Master Plan 
Update Scope of Work for Item 7.C. 

 
This year, per MPO policy, SU funding (approximately $5 to $6 million) is slated for prioritization 

of projects related to planning, safety and new bridges.  Planning is essentially spoken for; a list was 
provided to the MPO Board in June, 2022.  Ms. McLaughlin has provided forms to key staff for the County, 
the City of Naples and Marco Island.  Tim Brock from Everglades City also expressed interest at the TAC 
meeting earlier in the morning.   

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 

 

7. Committee Action  
 
A. Elect Chair and Vice-Chair 

 
Ms. Homiak moved elect Ms. Middelstaedt as Chair and Mr. Gelfand as Vice-Chair.  Mr. Sasser 

seconded.  Carried unanimously.  
 
Ms. Middelstaedt stated that she will miss next month’s CAC meeting, as she will be out-of-state.  

Mr. Gelfand will chair next month’s CAC meeting. 
 

B. Endorse Automated Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Scope 
 

Ms. McLaughlin explained that the MPO desires to automate the transfer of data for the TIP, 
which is provided by FDOT in an Excel spreadsheet, to a more user-friendly format and to include familiar, 
pertinent information.  The MPO would also like to have a searchable GIS map.  The intention is that the 
vendor provide training and standard operating procedures to MPO Staff so that the work can be done in-
house in the future.  FDOT used to provide the features, but only does so for its own projects now.  MPO 
Staff would like to provide the Scope and a work order to the MPO Board at its February meeting.  TAC 
endorsed the Scope at its meeting earlier in the morning. 

 
Ms. Homiak moved to endorse the Automated Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Scope.  

Mr. Gelfand seconded.  Carried unanimously.  
 

C. Endorse Scope of Services for Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan Update 
 

Ms. McLaughlin indicated that the handout provided at the beginning of the meeting is a revised 
Scope of Services for the Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan (BPMP) Update, which includes the revisions 
suggested by BPAC at their January 17 meeting.   
 
 The BPMP Update is relevant to the forthcoming 2050 Long-Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) 
update.  The Scope is intended to provide the consultant with an idea of what resources to use and the focus 
in developing the Update.  One of the purposes is to update the methodology for when a call for 
bicycle/pedestrian projects is issued for SU and Transportation Alternative (TA) funding (projects would 
also be eligible for carbon reduction formula funds).  BPAC also wanted to identify regional priorities to 
support potential applications by member governments or the MPO for recreational trail programs and SUN 
Trail.  BPAC wants to ensure that regional connections between Collier and Lee MPOs remain maintained.  
There is also a focus by the County and the Cities on neighborhood scale improvements.  The importance 
of safety has also been emphasized in the Scope.  After the BPAC Chair gave his report to the MPO Board 
at its last meeting, the MPO Board expressed a great deal of interest regarding safety, especially from an 
education standpoint.  Some of the key components of the Scope are robust public involvement to target 
specific stakeholders, including potentially partnering with local community groups/nonprofits, 
participating in community events, and multi-lingual and translation services.  BPAC also discussed the 
benefits of print, radio and television for the traditional media outreach component.  Much work has been 
done since the last BPMP Update in terms of local bicycle/pedestrian plans and regional connections (e.g., 



4 

 

U.S. Bike Route 15, SUN Trail updates, recent FDOT data gathered for its target zero initiative).  Between 
old funding and new funding, there is a potential increase of $1.4 to $1.5 million.   
 

Regarding the evaluation criteria/scoring matrix, BPAC felt it previously had too little to consider 
when ranking and prioritizing projects.  Expanded criteria was included in the current, draft Scope.  TAC, 
at its meeting earlier in the morning, suggested simplifying and consolidating the criteria.  TAC endorsed 
the revised Scope with TAC’s suggested revisions.   

 
Ms. McLaughlin asked if CAC had any questions, revisions or additions to the Scope.  Mr. Gelfand 

asked whether electric bikes are fast or slow.  Ms. McLaughlin responded that many go very fast.  Two 
MPO Board members had expressed concern regarding electric bikes.  Commissioner Kowal wanted to 
work directly with the County Attorney to develop a draft ordinance regarding riding bikes against traffic.  
The MPO Board approved a motion for an ordinance to be drafted.  Commissioner Hall wanted the 
ordinance to include where it is appropriate to ride electric bikes.  The MPO Board wants BPAC to review 
and comment on the draft ordinance.  MPO Staff intends to provide the draft ordinance to TAC and CAC 
for review and comment as well.  The draft ordinance may be provided to BPAC at its February meeting.  
Electric bikes are heavier and faster and have caused consternation all over the country because of the safety 
issues and hazards they present to pedestrians and drivers. 

 
Mr. Gelfand moved to endorse the Scope of Services for Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan 

Update as revised by BPAC and TAC.  Mr. Sasser seconded.  Passed 4:1 with Mr. DiDonna dissenting.  
 
Mr. DiDonna stated that he does not support any bike paths until there are bike paths in North 

Naples.  Further, a new high school is being built in North Naples and there is currently no way to get there 
by bicycle.  Ms. McLaughlin pointed out that the County is including shared use paths for both 
cyclists/pedestrians on new roads, but sometimes on only one side of the road.  Mr. DiDonna commented 
that there is no connection from the new high school to the west side of Collier County. 

 

D. Clear and Block Date for Tentative Joint Meeting with Lee County CAC 
 

Ms. McLaughlin explained that the 2020 census map handout provided at the beginning of the 
meeting impacts when a joint meeting with Lee County CAC would be.  Don Scott, Director of Lee MPO 
and TAC member, provided the newly released map that morning.  MPO Staff has been trying to schedule 
joint meetings between TAC, CAC and the MPO Boards for the fall.  Urban area decennary census releases 
reanalyze urban areas.  The recent release (2020) also redefined how urban areas would be designated and 
calculated.  A portion of Collier County’s designated urban area had crept into Lee County in 2010.  
Therefore, as part of the formula funds, Collier County was getting a small portion of Lee County’s 
planning/project money.  At that time, the lost funding was not enough to generate a great deal of concern 
on Lee MPO’s part.  It is a difficult issue to address because when it has happened in the past, there has 
been a push from FHWA to consolidate the MPOs.  Collier MPO Board, understandably, did not want to 
lose their control over their own region.  With the recent census release, the portion of Lee County 
designated for Collier County urban funding has increased dramatically.  SU and TA funding will be 
impacted.  FHWA may push for consolidation again.  Another potential solution is some sort of agreement 
where funding is allocated by County lines.  The MPO Advisory Council, as is typical after a census release, 



5 

 

has advised that planning allocation formulas need to be revisited, which has to be decided by early October.  
Therefore, joint meetings would need to take place before the fall and likely in the summer.  Ms. 
Middelstaedt commented that Collier BCC and Everglades City Council are no longer taking a summer 
break from meetings.  Mr. Gelfand asked how urbanization is defined.  Ms. McLaughlin responded that 
it has much to do with population density, but she would need to look up the other criteria.  It is established 
at the Federal level. 
 

Mr. DiDonna asked whether there would be a virtual attendance option at a joint CAC meeting.  
Ms. McLaughlin responded that there would need to be an in-person quorum.  Mr. DiDonna indicated 
that he would like the ability to participate in a joint meeting virtually.  Ms. McLaughlin responded that it 
would depend upon the meeting location and meeting room capabilities, as well as what the two MPOs are 
willing to do.  If the joint meeting occurred in May, Mr. DiDonna would be able to attend in-person.  
Otherwise, staff would need to follow up to determine whether virtual attendance would be an option. 

 

8. Reports and Presentation (May Require Committee Action) 
 
A. South Corridor Master Plan - FDOT Interstate Program Office 

 
Ms. Harris provided a presentation regarding FDOT’s South Corridor Master Plan.  The conditions 

of I-75, origin and destination data, and how people use I-75 were analyzed.  The preliminary list of 
proposed projects includes interchange improvements and configurations and mainline segment 
improvements from Collier Boulevard in Naples to Bayshore Road in North Fort Myers, and the timeframes 
for which the improvements are needed (even with funding, it is not likely that the target year would be 
met).  On the southern part of the south corridor (from Collier Boulevard to Corkscrew Road), there is a 
need for general use lane(s) and an auxiliary lane.  On the northern part of the south corridor (from 
Corkscrew Road to Bayshore Road), there is a need for managed lanes - use lanes, auxiliary lanes, and 
lanes that are separated from the other traffic.  The local lanes should ease congestion for those who use the 
Interstate to travel locally.  Some interchanges only need minor improvements.  The Plan does not 
contemplate tolling for the local lanes; a separate study is being conducted regarding tolling.  The width 
between the northbound and southbound lanes would be a least 40 feet.  There has not yet been a decision 
regarding whether there would be a barrier or a buffer between the local lanes and the thru lanes.  The Plan 
includes the ability to access the thru lanes from the local lanes at interchanges.  The auxiliary lanes 
typically go from interchange to interchange and can be exited at each exit, but the traveler may not be able 
to get into the thru lanes at each of the interchanges. 

 
 Mr. DiDonna expressed concern regarding the number of lanes planned for construction in the 
North Fort Myers area, as well as the impact on bridges.  Ms. Harris responded that the issues will be 
evaluated as the Plan moves into the PD&E phase.  Mr. DiDonna commented that a recent study provided 
to CAC indicated that approximately 44% of the traffic that comes off of Alligator Alley is headed to 
Tampa.  Mr. DiDonna suggested that instead of widening I-75, there should be a bypass for traffic coming 
from the Miami area (similar to the Sawgrass Expressway in Fort Lauderdale.)  Ms. Harris responded that 
the South Corridor Plan is based off of the existing traffic and anticipated traffic, based on approved land 
use and development.  The planned thru lanes are the lanes the traffic would be in, which would reduce 
congestion in both the local lanes and the thru lanes.  Mr. DiDonna emphasized that it would be better to 



6 

 

have a bypass.  Ms. Homiak commented that additional right-of-way would need to be purchased for a 
bypass, and there would also be environmental impact issues.  A bypass would be much more expensive.  
Ms. Middelstaedt added that there was previously an attempt to include a corridor up the center of Florida, 
and it was rejected.  Mr. DiDonna responded that he is concerned about safety; in the case of an emergency, 
such as a hurricane, there is not an additional route.     
 

Ms. Harris continued that public meetings have been scheduled by FDOT: a live online session 
and Q&A will take place on February 15 and an in-person meeting will take place on February 16 at North 
Collier Regional Park.  FDOT hopes to finalize the Master Plan by summer.  From there, an implementation 
plan will prioritize the projects along all of I-75 and I-4 in District 1.  The approach is to complete an 
interchange and mainline segment piece by piece based on year of need and available funding.   
 

B. Collier County Public Transportation & Neighborhood Enhancement Division Report 
on Collier Area Transit (CAT) 

 
Ms. Arnold provided a presentation regarding Public Transit & Neighborhood Enhancement 

(PTNE), and explained what PTNE is and what it does.  In addition to transit, PTNE has a Municipal Service 
Taxing/Benefit Units that provides communities with various improvements.  Ms. Arnold discussed Collier 
Area Transit (CAT) information and current operations statistics related to its fixed route system and 
paratransit system, as well as performance measures, planning functions, assets, and asset management.   
 
 PTNE has been coordinating with FDOT regarding a van pool it has implemented with several 
community businesses, which appears to be successful.  There are many travelers between the two counties.  
Mr. Gelfand commented that he heard 48,000 people commute into Collier County daily and asked if Ms. 
Arnold knew how many of them use public transit.  Ms. Arnold responded that she was unsure of the 
percentage, but CAT does coordinate with LeeTran and has a connector service on Immokalee Road for 
which ridership is high. 
 
 Mr. Gelfand stated that at a previous BCC meeting a few years ago, in comparing benchmarks of 
CAT and LeeTran, one of the issues was wait times for CAT buses (the routes in Collier County are longer 
than the ones in Lee County), and asked Ms. Arnold if she had an update on the issue.  Ms. Arnold 
responded that the ability for CAT to provide bus service in shorter increments of time hinges upon the 
ability to add more buses/drivers per run, which would require greater financial commitment.  During peak 
times, there are shorter wait times.  Mr. DiDonna asked what the load factor for the buses is; the available 
seats compared to the actual number of passengers.  Mr. DiDonna wondered whether CAT could use 
smaller, more efficient (such as electric) buses.  Ms. Arnold responded that CAT does have a few hybrid 
buses.  With respect to load factor, it fluctuates hourly.  Mr. DiDonna indicated he would like to know 
how many seats are available versus how many are seats are filled.  Ms. Arnold indicated that CAT’s 
passenger per hour calculations might be helpful to answer Mr. DiDonna’s question, and that she could get 
the information for him.   
 
 Mr. DiDonna asked whether the CAT bus service on Bluebill Avenue was ever started again, as 
the beach access near Delnor-Wiggins Pass State Park is still open.  People currently have to walk across 
the bridge and in the street.  Ms. Arnold responded that CAT is coordinating with Parks & Recreation to 



7 

 

determine what to do because Delnor-Wiggins is not open.  A potential alternate route is being explored.  
Previously, CAT would enter the park, which enabled the bus to be turned around, but the turnaround 
without going into the park is very tight. 
 
 Mr. DiDonna asked if there were any plans for GPS locators and bus trackers at the bus stops so 
that passengers can tell where the buses are at.  Ms. Arnold responded that CAT has an app that allows 
passengers to see where the buses are on their phones, but there are not trackers at the bus stops.  There are 
trackers at the transfer stations.  Mr. DiDonna asked when CAT anticipates switching to electric buses.  
Ms. Arnold responded that one electric bus is being ordered to be built to pilot the technology; CAT expects 
to have the bus within the next 24 months.  Any routes would depend upon the range of the bus.   
 
 Mr. Gelfand asked, as the population density changes, what the criteria are to determine whether 
to start a new bus route.  Ms. Arnold responded that PTNE works with the County’s development 
department, so that when developments get planned, the potential for the anticipated population to utilize 
transit is evaluated.  For example, the area along Oil Well Road is being built up.  CAT does serve the area 
now and has made modifications to move some of the service that was along Immokalee Road to increase 
capacity along Oil Well Road.  Mr. DiDonna asked if there are plans for a route along Old 41; there are 
not sidewalks or bike paths and there is high-speed traffic.  Ms. Arnold responded that CAT does not 
currently have anything scheduled along Old 41.  One reason is because for public transit, there needs to 
be sidewalks so that passengers have a way to walk safely to get to the bus.  There are scheduled plans to 
construct pathways along Old 41.  Once that is in place, CAT would evaluate the need for a route.  Ms. 
McLaughlin added that Old 41 sidewalks/pathways are currently part of an FDOT initiative.  The PD&E 
is completed and FDOT has asked both Collier and Lee MPOs for money for the design phase, which is 
included in one of the outer years of the 2024-2028 work program.  It is being funded phase by phase.  
There is typically a two-year gap between design and construction. 
 

 9. Member Comments 
 

Mr. DiDonna asked Ms. McLaughlin if she knew what was going on in North Naples at Kalea 
Bay; there is an attempt to add five stories to the building.  Some action was taken during the summer and 
Mr. DiDonna did not get any notification.  Ms. McLaughlin indicated that the County (BCC and Planning 
Commission) would be better able to answer such a question; the MPO is separate from the County.  MPO 
Staff does not follow land use.  Ms. Lantz indicated that zoning and comprehensive planning may be able 
to answer Mr. DiDonna’s question.  Mr. Gelfand asked if the potential addition of new stories at Kalea 
Bay would impact the Congestion Management (CM) Plan.  If so, would CAC be informed, and would the 
CM Plan have to be adjusted?  Ms. McLaughlin responded that the CM Plan is actually the CM Process 
and was recently updated in 2022.  The CM Process sets forth the methodology by which SU funds for 
congestion management will be used to help solve congestions issues.  Included are Federal categories that 
must be addressed, such as safety, schools, equity, et cetera.  If there was a major shift in a land use decision 
at the County level that was significant enough to register on a regional transportation model, it would 
likely be brought to the attention of the MPO at the long-range transportation planning phase.  Ms. Lantz 
added that adding traffic to roads and then moving into the LRTP are two aspects of transportation planning.  
The daily aspect is when a developer wants to build a project, they are required to go to zoning or 
comprehensive planning.  Building compatibility with current land use, correct zoning, and the required 



8 

 

traffic impact statement, among other things, are evaluated.  If there would be an impact to congestion, the 
developer contributes to the five-year work program or the LRTP to help ease congestion.  This is addressed 
by Collier County’s Planning Commission and the BCC.  After a development is built, transportation 
planning monitors the trips and develops a report setting forth capacity for major roads.  This is used to 
develop the five-year work program, which then impacts the LRTP.  Mr. Sasser commented that the 
process seems to address congestion too late instead of before it has started, and gave the example of 
Immokalee Road.  Developments seem to be built faster than the roads can be expanded.  Mr. DiDonna 
commented that Wiggins Pass Road is outdated and over-loaded; the potential addition of more stories at 
Kalea Bay is a problem.  Bike paths may be addressed on Wiggins Pass Road, but not until 2027.  Old 41 
is dangerous and is not going to be fixed until 2029.  Developers have been paying impact fees and the 
improvements should have already been completed.  Not having a way to get to the new high school from 
the west will also increase traffic. 

 

10. Distribution Items 
 

A. Veterans Memorial Boulevard Extension Update 
 

Item distributed. 
 

11. Next Meeting Date  
 

February 27, 2023, 2:00 p.m. –Transportation Management Services Bldg. Main Conference 
Room, 2885 S. Horseshoe Dr., Naples, FL, 34104 – in person.  Mr. Gelfand will chair the meeting. 
 

12. Adjournment  
 

Ms. Middelstaedt adjourned the meeting at 3:50 p.m.  



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
COMMITTEE ACTION  

ITEM 7A    
 

Endorse Amendment #2 to the FY 2023-2027 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) and 
Authorizing Resolution 
 

 
OBJECTIVE: Committee endorsement of Amendment #2 to the FY 2023-2027 Collier MPO 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP), and authorizing resolution. 
 
CONSIDERATIONS:  The Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) has requested the Collier MPO 
to amend its FY 2023-2027 TIP to add the following projects: 
 
• 451147-1: Capital for fixed transit route.  This is for the Bonita Springs UZA. 
• 452478-2: Capital for fixed transit route.  This is for the Bonita Springs UZA. 
• 451893-1: Capital for fixed transit route.  This is a Capital Award for Collier County Bus. 
• 451893-2: Capital for fixed transit route.  This is a Capital Award for Collier County. 
 
Attachment 1 contains Resolution 2023-1, including Exhibits 1 and 2.  
 
The MPO is following the TIP amendment public involvement process outlined in the MPO’s Public 
Participation Plan in that this Amendment has been:  
 

• Posted for review by the TAC and CAC; 
• Public comment period announced on the MPO website; and 
• Distributed via e-mail to applicable list-serve(s). 

 
The comment period began on February 17, 2023 and ends with the MPO Board meeting on March 10, 
2023. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: That the Committee endorse the Amendment and authorizing 
resolution.  

 
Prepared By:   Sean Kingston, MPO Principal Planner  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. MPO Resolution 2023-1, including Exhibits 1 and 2 
 



1 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Collier Metropolitan Planning Organization that: 

l. The FY 2022/23 - 2026/27 Transportation Improvement Program Amendment
#2 set forth in Exhibits 1 and 2 is hereby adopted.

2. The Collier Metropolitan Planning Organization's Chairman is hereby
authorized to execute this Resolution certifying the MPO Board's approval of
the Amendment to the FY 2022/23-2026/27 Transportation Improvement
Program for transmittal to FDOT and the Federal Highway Administration.

This Resolution PASSED and duly adopted by the Collier Metropolitan Planning Organization 
Board after majority vote on this 10th day of March 2023. 

     7A Attachment 1 
TAC/CAC 2/27/23

MPO RESOLUTION #2023-1 
A RESOLUTION OF THE COLLIER METROPOLITAN 

PLANNING ORGANIZATION APPROVING  
AMENDMENT #2 TO THE FY 2022/23- 2026/27  

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM  

WHEREAS, State and federal statutes, rules and regulations require that each designated 
Metropolitan Planning Organization develop and adopt a Transportation Improvement Program 
(“TIP”) and set forth the procedures for doing so; and  

WHEREAS, the Collier Metropolitan Planning Organization’s (the “MPO”) TIP may 
require amending as authorized and required by 23 C.F.R. Part 450 Sections 326, 328, 330, 332 
and 334, and by F.S. § 339.175(6), (8) and (13); and 

WHEREAS, the FDOT requested the Collier MPO to amend its FY 2022/23-2026/27 TIP 
to add Federal Project Numbers (FPNs) 451147-1, 452478-2, 451893-1, and 451893-2 as Capital 
for fixed transit routes, as shown in Exhibit 1; and 

WHEREAS, FDOT has submitted a letter to the MPO stating that the amendments are 
necessary to include in the MPO’s TIP to ensure consistency with FDOT’s Work Program, as 
shown in Exhibit 2; and  

WHEREAS, the MPO announced the TIP Amendment on its website, distributed it via 
e-mail to various list-serves, and followed all of the steps of its Public Participation Plan through
the expiration of the public comment period, which terminated with the MPO’s meeting on March
10, 2023; and

WHEREAS, the MPO has reviewed the proposed TIP Amendment for those projects and 
determined that it is consistent with the MPO’s adopted plans and policies; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with all required State and federal procedures, rules and 
regulations, including but not limited to the FDOT’s MPO Administrative Manual, the TIP 
Amendment must be accompanied by an endorsement indicating official MPO approval. 



2 
 

 

 

Attest:      COLLIER METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
 
 
 
By: _______________________   By: ___________________________ 
       Anne McLaughlin     
       MPO Executive Director          MPO Chair 
 

 

 

Approved as to form and legality: 

 

__________________________________ 

Scott R. Teach, Deputy County Attorney 
 



       
 

 

 

FPN Action Project Name Requested By Fund Phase FY Amount 

451147-1 Capital for fixed route 

5310 CAPITAL - 
BONITA SPRINGS 
UZA - COLLIER 
COUNTY BOCC 

FDOT 

DPTO CAP 23 $ 34,381 
DU CAP 23 $ 275,052 

LF CAP 23 $ 34,382 

452478-2 Capital for fixed route 

5310 DISTRICT 
CAPITAL - BONITA 
SPRINGS UZA - 
COLLIER COUNTY 
BOCC 

FDOT 

DPTO CAP 23 $ 119 
DU CAP 23 $ 950 

LF CAP 23 $ 119 

451893-1 Capital for fixed route 

PROGRAM 18 - 
SECTION 5311 
CAPITAL AWARD 
COLLIER COUNTY 
BUS 

FDOT 

DU CAP 23 $ 557,117 

LF CAP 23 $ 139,279 

451893-2 Capital for fixed route 
SECTION 5311 
CAPITAL AWARD 
COLLIER COUNTY 

FDOT 
DU CAP 23 $ 42,639 

LF CAP 23 $ 10,660 
        

FPN Responsible 
Agency TIP Page LRTP Reference 

451147-1 FDOT  Appendix K, 
P6, Section H P6-23, Table 6-12 

452478-2 FDOT Appendix K, 
P7, Section H P6-23, Table 6-12 

451893-1 FDOT Appendix K, 
P8, Section H P6-23, Table 6-12 

449143-1 FDOT Appendix K, 
P9, Section H P6-23, Table 6-12 

 

EXHIBIT 1 
TIP Amendment #2 for Approval by MPO Board on March 10, 2023 for  

FY 2022/23 through FY 2026/27 TIP 



       
 

COLLIER METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
 

 Attest: ___________________  Date: ________   By: _____________________ Date: _________ 
                      Anne McLaughlin              MPO Chair  
                     Collier MPO Executive Director            Printed Name: 
                                                                                                                                Title: MPO Chair 

 Approved as to form and legality 

 _____________________________ 
          Scott R. Teach, Deputy County Attorney 



COLLIER MPO FY 2023 - 27 TIP

451147-1 5310 CAPITAL - BONITA SPRINGS UZA - COLLIER COUNTY BOCC

Project Description: Prior Years Cost: N/A
Future Years Cost: N/A

Work Summary: CAPITAL FOR FIXED ROUTE Total Project Cost: N/A

Lead Agency: COLLIER COUNTY Length: NA 2045 LRTP: Table 6-12, P6-23

Phase Fund 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 Total
CAP DPTO 34,381 34,381
CAP DU 275,052 275,052
CAP LF 34,382 34,382

0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 343,815 0 0 0 0 343,815

Adopted 06/10/2022
Amendment #2 ‐ March 10, 2023 6 SECTION H - TRANSIT



COLLIER MPO FY 2023 - 27 TIP

452478-2 5310 DISTRICT CAPITAL - BONITA SPRINGS UZA - COLLIER COUNTY BOCC

Project Description: Prior Years Cost: N/A
Future Years Cost: N/A

Work Summary: CAPITAL FOR FIXED ROUTE Total Project Cost: N/A

Lead Agency: COLLIER COUNTY Length: NA 2045 LRTP: Table 6-12, P6-23

Phase Fund 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 Total
CAP DPTO 119 119
CAP DU 950 950
CAP LF 119 119

0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 1,188 0 0 0 0 1,188

Adopted 06/10/2022
Amendment #2 ‐ March 10, 2023 7 SECTION H - TRANSIT



COLLIER MPO FY 2023 - 27 TIP

451893-1 PROGRAM 18 - SECTION 5311 CAPITAL AWARD COLLIER COUNTY BUS

Project Description: Prior Years Cost: N/A
Future Years Cost: N/A

Work Summary: CAPITAL FOR FIXED ROUTE Total Project Cost: N/A

Lead Agency: COLLIER COUNTY Length: NA 2045 LRTP: Table 6-12, P6-23

Phase Fund 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 Total
CAP DU 557,117 557,117
CAP LF 139,279 139,279

0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 696,396 0 0 0 0 696,396

Adopted 06/10/2022
Amendment #2 ‐ March 10, 2023 8 SECTION H - TRANSIT



COLLIER MPO FY 2023 - 27 TIP

451893-2 SECTION 5311 CAPITAL AWARD COLLIER COUNTY

Project Description: Prior Years Cost: N/A
Future Years Cost: N/A

Work Summary: CAPITAL FOR FIXED ROUTE Total Project Cost: N/A

Lead Agency: COLLIER COUNTY Length: NA 2045 LRTP: Table 6-12, P6-23

Phase Fund 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 Total
CAP DU 42,639 42,639
CAP LF 10,660 10,660

0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 53,299 0 0 0 0 53,299

Adopted 06/10/2022
Amendment #2 ‐ March 10, 2023 9 SECTION H - TRANSIT



Florida Department of Transportation
RON DESANTIS 

GOVERNOR 
801 N Broadway Avenue 

Bartow, Florida 33830 

JARED W. PERDUE, P.E. 

SECRETARY 

Improve Safety, Enhance Mobility, Inspire Innovation 

www.fdot.gov 

January 12, 2023 

Mrs. Anne McLaughlin 

Executive Director 

Collier MPO 

2885 Horseshoe Dr S  

Naples, FL 34104 

RE:  Request for Amendments to the Collier County Metropolitan Planning Organization’s Fiscal 
Years 2022/23 – FY 2026/27 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). 

Dear Mrs. McLaughlin: 

The letter is a formal request for the Collier County Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) to approve 
the following amendments to the FY2022/23 – FY2026/27 Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP) at the 
February 10, 2023 MPO Board Meeting. 

451147-1    5310 CAPITAL - BONITA SPRINGS UZA - COLLIER COUNTY BOCC 

This is a new project that has been selected during the competitive application process for 5310 
funding.  The funds were allocated to the state in FFY22 and were programmed in SFY23. 

452478-2    5310 DISTRICT CAPITAL - BONITA SPRINGS UZA - COLLIER COUNTY BOCC 

This is a new project that has been selected during the competitive application process for 5310 
funding.  The funds were allocated to the state in FFY22 and were programmed in SFY23. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1E6A1EE9-1105-47DF-88E6-A3B6EF5E67CF

EXHIBIT 2



 
 

 

451893-1    PROGRAM 18 - SECTION 5311 CAPITAL AWARD COLLIER COUNTY BUS 
 
This is a new project that has been selected during the competitive application process for 5311 
funding.  The funds were allocated to the state in FFY22 and were programmed in SFY23. 
 
 
451893-2    SECTION 5311 CAPITAL AWARD COLLIER COUNTY 
 
This is a new project that has been selected during the competitive application process for 5311 
funding.  The funds were allocated to the state in FFY22 and were programmed in SFY23. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1E6A1EE9-1105-47DF-88E6-A3B6EF5E67CF



 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at (863) 272-2368. 
 
      Sincerely, 
 
 
      Victoria G Peters 

Community Liaison 
 
cc:   Carlos A Gonzalez, Federal Highway Administration    

         Denise Strickland, Florida Department of Transportation 
Ashley Melton, Florida Department of Transportation 

         Wayne Gaither, Florida Department of Transportation 

   

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1E6A1EE9-1105-47DF-88E6-A3B6EF5E67CF



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
COMMITTEE ACTION 

ITEM 7B 
 

Review and Comment on Draft Bike-Ped Safety Ordinance   
 

 
OBJECTIVE: For the Committee to review and comment on the draft Bike-Ped Safety Ordinance. 
 
CONSIDERATIONS: The County Attorney’s Office (CAO) has followed up on the direction provided at 
the December 2022, MPO Board meeting regarding drafting a County ordinance regulating the operation 
of bicycles on public sidewalks.  The CAO has proposed an amendment to the existing Pedestrian Safety 
Ordinance to incorporate additional regulations covering the operation of bicycles (including electrical 
bicycles) on public sidewalks within the unincorporated portions of Collier County. 
 
The amendment would require that bicyclists ride the same direction as the flow of traffic and that only 
human powered bicycles can be operated on public sidewalks.  Cyclists could ride electric bicycles on 
sidewalks, but they would have to be under human power rather than the battery function. 
 
The CAO discussed the proposed amended Ordinance with the Collier County Sheriff Office’s attorney.  
Although the amended Ordinance specifically regulates the unincorporated portions of the County, the 
CAO will be reaching out to the respective attorneys representing the municipalities to gauge their interest. 
 
Staff will provide the Committee’s comments to the CAO.  The new sections of the Ordinance are 
underlined, and any changes are included in strikethrough. (Attachment 1).  
 
MPO Staff will report on comments made by the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee at their 
meeting on February 21, 2023.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: that the Committee review and comment on the draft Bike-Ped Safety 
Ordinance. 
 
Prepared By: Anne McLaughlin, MPO Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

 
1. Draft Bike-Ped Safety Ordinance in Track Changes  



7B Attachment 1 
TAC/CAC  2/27/23













EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
COMMITTEE ACTION 

ITEM 7C 
 

Endorse Project Scope for Transit Disadvantaged Service Plan – Major Update 
 

 
OBJECTIVE: For the Committee to endorse the Project Scope for the Transit Disadvantaged Service Plan 
(TDSP) Major Update. 
 
CONSIDERATIONS:   

The Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged (CTD) requires a TDSP in conformance 
with its regulations to meet the requirements for State funding eligibility.  Collier MPO, in coordination 
with Collier County Public Transit and Neighborhood Enhancement (PTNE) Division, will provide the 
consultant with documents and materials related to the update. 

The consultant will then conduct plan preparation to obtain deliverables for committees and the MPO 
Board, including: Public Involvement, Needs Assessment, Major TDSP Update Activities, Draft TDSP 
Major Update, and Final TDSP Major Update for review, comment, approval, and acceptance, and then 
submittal to the CTD by October 2024. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: That the Committee endorse the TDSP Major Update Project Scope.   
 
Prepared By: Sean Kingston, MPO Principal Planner, MURP, AICP, CFM 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

1. Project Scope for TDSP Major Update 



Page 1 of 5 

Project Scope 
Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan (TDSP) Major Update 

DRAFT v3 

A Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan (TDSP) is a five-year plan required by the Florida 

Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged (CTD) that calls for an annually updated 

strategic plan developed by the Planning Agency and the Community Transportation 

Coordinator (CTC) which contains development, service and quality assurance components 

related to the delivery of the Transportation Disadvantaged Program. The CTD requires a TDSP 

in order to meet the requirements to maintain eligibility for state funding. 

This Major Update of the Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan (TDSP) shall address the 

requirements of, and comply with, applicable Florida Commission for the Transportation 

Disadvantaged (CTD) regulations as described in the November 2007 Instruction Manual for the 

Memorandum of Agreement and the Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan 2007/2008. 

The TDSP also serves as the Locally Coordinated Human Services Transportation Plan 

(LCHSTP) as required by The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) for funding eligibility under 

the Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities (Section 5310) program in 

accordance with the Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) bill.   

The Collier MPO, in coordination with the County Public Transit and Neighborhood 

Enhancement Division will provide the Consultant with documents and materials as requested 

related to the development of the TDSP major update, which may include but is not limited to: 

current GIS map files, last major TDSP update, last TDSP annual update, last Transit 

Development Plan (TDP) major update, last TDP annual update, the current Transportation 

Improvement Plan (TIP), the new Memorandum of Agreement (MOA), and relevant long range 

transportation plans. 

Task I. Public Involvement 

The Consultant will assess community perceptions (both system users and non-users) of public 

transportation needs and services.  This will be accomplished by the public involvement 

activities listed below.  It is anticipated the Collier MPO will be responsible for coordinating the 

communication activities (meeting notices, media notifications, newsletter articles, website 

content etc.) consistent with its public involvement program.   

1. The Consultant will attend a meeting of the Local Coordinating Board (LCB) to provide

information on the schedule and progress of the major TDSP update.  Contractor will

make a short presentation and provide an opportunity for public comment and

involvement. The MPO will each assign a Project Manager to lead the project. The MPO

Project Manager will serve as the primary point of contact for the Consultant and will

coordinate internal reviews of deliverables among the MPO staff as well as with the

PTNE Division.

7C Attachment 1 
TAC/CAC 2/27/23



Page 2 of 5 

2. The Consultant will host a kick-off teleconference with the MPO Project Managers and a

representative(s) from PTNE to solicit input about the project and to guide deliverables

produced by the Consultant.  The kick-off meeting will occur early on in the project

process. The MPO Project Manager and PTNE representative(s) will review all

deliverables and provide input and direction to the Consultant throughout the project.

3. Based on the input received during the public involvement process, the Consultant will

summarize and include the comments/suggestions/concerns as part of the major TDSP

update draft document.

4. The LCB will hold a public hearing to solicit public input on the draft document.

5. The MPO Project Manager will coordinate review and comment on the draft document

by the MPO’s Technical and Citizen Advisory Committees and final review and approval

by the MPO Board.

Deliverable:  Documentation and description of the meetings held will be included in the

Draft Major TDSP Update.

Task II.  Needs Assessment 

The Consultant will review and analyze needs, opportunities, and alternatives for the delivery of 

transportation disadvantaged services in Collier County to develop strategic initiatives for the 

program.  These initiatives will be developed in conjunction with the MPO Project Manager as 

identified in Task I and will consider information gained from the LCB public hearing as well as 

comments provided by the Technical and Citizen Advisory Committees. 

The results of all previous tasks will be considered in developing strategic initiatives for the 

Collier MPO.  Initiatives will be identified and analyzed at this stage regardless of cost to 

emphasize the strategic intent of the TDSP process.  Any projects derived from this process will 

appear in the Needs Assessment section and the Goals, Objectives and Strategies section of 

the Draft Major TDSP update document.   

Deliverable:  A listing of projects developed during the Needs Assessment process will 

appear in the Draft Major TDSP Update document.  Also, any relationship of the project 

listing to the information gathered during the public involvement process will be noted. 

Task III.  Major TDSP Update Activities 

As per the Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged Instruction Manual for 

the Completion of Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plans, the following sections of 

the Plan must be reviewed and updated as part of this major TDSP update. 

Section I – Development Plan 

A. Introduction to the Service Area

1. Background of the TD Program

2. Community Transportation Coordinator Designation/History



Page 3 of 5 

3. Organization Chart

4. Consistency Review of Other Plans

5. Public Participation

B. Service Area Profile/Demographics

1. Service Area Description

2. Demographics

C. Service Analysis

1. Forecasts of Transportation Disadvantaged Population

2. Needs Assessment

3. Barriers to Coordination

4. Goals, Objectives and Strategies

5. Implementation Schedule

Section II – Service Plan 

A. Operations

1. Types, Hours, Days of Service

2. Accessing Service

3. Transportation Operators and Coordination Contractors

4. Public Transit Utilization

5. School Bus Utilization

6. Vehicle Inventory

7. System Safety Program Plan Certification

8. Intercounty Services

9. Emergency Preparedness and Response

10. Educational Efforts/Marketing

11. Acceptable Alternatives

12. Service Standards

13. Local Complaint and Grievance Procedure/Process

14. Community Transportation Coordinator Monitoring Procedures of Operators

and Coordination Contractors

15. Coordination Contract Evaluation Criteria

B. Cost/Revenue Allocation and Rate Structure Justification

Section III – Quality Assurance 

A. Provide information on the evaluation processes utilized at the local level to

ensure quality of service is being achieved and that it is being provided in the

most cost effective, efficient, unduplicated and unfragmented manner.

B. Incorporate current CTC evaluation worksheets including Cost, Competition and

Coordination.



Page 4 of 5 

Deliverable: Draft Development Plan and Service Plan documents. 

Task IV.  Draft TDSP Major Update 

A draft TDSP Major Update will be submitted and presented to the MPO Project Manager and 

PTNE Liaison for review and comment, followed by presentations to the PTAC, the LCB, the 

TAC, CAC and the MPO Board for review and comment.  

The final draft TDSP Major Update will be presented to the LCB and the MPO Board for 

approval and acceptance. 

Deliverable:  The final draft document will consist of consolidation of all required sections noted 

above in Tasks I, II and III into one comprehensive document.  The draft will be provided in 

electronic format to facilitate the review process.  If deemed necessary by the MPO Project 

Manager, the Consultant will submit up to (10) copies of the draft TDSP Major Update. Working 

with the MPO Project Manager and PTNE Liaison, the Consultant will modify the draft TDSP 

Major Update to respond to comments received.   

Task V.  Final TDSP Major Update 

The Consultant will present the Final TDSP to the LCB and MPO Board. Following review and 

acceptance of by the MPO, the Consultant shall prepare and submit the Final TDSP Major 

Update document. 

Deliverable:  The Consultant will prepare three (3) original signed Final TDSP Major 

Update documents, two of which are for the MPO’s transmittal to the Florida 

Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged and the other for the MPO files.   The 

Consultant will prepare and provide the MPO with an electronic copy of the document 

both in Microsoft Word and as a pdf file. Maps created by the Consultant will be 

submitted in PDF and GIS file formats; Consultant generated tables will be provided in 

excel or access formats. 

PROJECT SCHEDULE 

With the assumption that the Notice to Proceed will be issued by June 1, 2023 it is anticipated 

the Major TDSP Update will be completed within a time frame to meet the required October 

30, 2024 submittal to the Florida Commission for Transportation Disadvantaged.  The 

following is the anticipated schedule for the completion of preliminary deliverables:   

Draft Schedule By Key Activity 

June 2023 Notice To Proceed Issued by Collier MPO 
June 2023 Kick-off Teleconference with Project Managers 
Sept 2023 Presentation at LCB/TD Meeting  
Dec 2023 Submit Preliminary Draft TDSP Major Update to Project Managers 
Feb 2024 PTAC meeting to Review Draft Update 
Feb 2024 TAC/CAC meeting to Review Draft Update 
Mar 2024 LCB Review Preliminary Draft TDSP Major Update  
Jun 2024 Submit Final Draft TDSP Major Update to Project Managers 



 

Page 5 of 5 

 

Aug 2024 Present Final Draft TDSP Major Update to PTAC, TAC/CAC 
Sep 2024 Present Final Draft TDSP Major Update to LCB  
Oct 2024 Submit Final TDSP Major Update to Collier MPO 
Oct 2024 MPO Submits Final TDSP Major Update to TD Commission 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
COMMITTEE ACTION 

ITEM 7D 
 

Endorse Project Scope for Zero Emissions Transit Fleet Transition Plan 
 

 
OBJECTIVE: For the Committee to endorse the Project Scope for the Zero Emissions Transit Fleet 
Transition Plan. 
 
CONSIDERATIONS:   

Collier Area Transit (CAT), in partnership with Collier MPO, will be hiring a consultant for the 
development of a plan aimed at Zero Emission Vehicles (ZEVs) for the purpose of a greener option than 
the current fleet.  Potential impacts, including operations, infrastructure, workforce, and financial 
performance will be evaluated for smooth deployment. 

The consultant will conduct plan preparation with the ultimate deliverable of a Final Zero Emissions Fleet 
Transition Plan to be presented to advisory- and decision-making bodies.  This will begin with the formation 
of a Project Management Plan (PMP), followed by interagency meetings to create a vision and make goals, 
then block/route modeling along with the analysis of alternatives including battery electric vehicles (BEV) 
and hydrogen electric fuel cells (HFC), energy charging and storage facilities review, fleet maintenance 
review, financial analysis, and a transition plan to the new technology. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: That the Committee endorse the Zero Emissions Transit Fleet Transition 
Plan Project Scope. 
 
Prepared By: Sean Kingston, MPO Principal Planner, MURP, AICP, CFM 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

1. Project Scope for Zero Emissions Transit Fleet Transition Plan 



Zero Emission Fleet Transition Plan 
Introduction 
Collier Area Transit (CAT) as the operator of Fixed-Route and Paratransit transportation for Collier 
County in partnership with Collier County Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) will be hiring a 
consultant to assist with the study and development of a roadmap to deploy zero emissions vehicles 
(ZEV).   ZEVs reflect a global trend to modernize fleets, reduce greenhouse-gas emissions, and make a 
cleaner, environmental-friendlier option. As the availability and models of ZEVs increase and the cost 
disparity with internal combustion engine models decreases ZEVs are finding their place in personal, 
public and private fleets. The introduction of a new technology has the potential to affect daily 
operations, infrastructure, workforce and financial performance.  The transition study evaluates these 
potential impacts and develops a strategic road map to facilitate a smooth deployment.   

Project Objectives 
The purpose of the study is to develop a Zero Emission Fleet Transition Roadmap to provide a feasibility 
and deployment plan to incorporate zero emission buses into Collier Area Transit’s services and 
facilities.  

Scope of Work 
Task 1. Project Management  
Activities in this task will pertain to the development and execution of a Project Management Plan, 
which will include a Quality Management Plan (QMP). These activities will include monitoring the 
project for cost and schedule variances, invoicing, progress reports and arranging for and conducting 
one hour bi-weekly project status meetings between consultant and client project managers. 

Anticipated Deliverables 

• PMP
• QMP
• Bi-weekly project status report and meeting notes

Task 2. Project Kick-off and Data Collection  
The consultant will host project kick-off meeting with Collier Area Transit and Collier MPO to determine 
project vision, goals, timeline, action items and any other project administration related issues to ensure 
the anticipated deliverables will meet desired outcome.  

Data collection 

After project kick-off, the consultant will collect data for target routes. Data to collect will include route 
characteristics, vehicle loads, terrain changes, fleet operating conditions, requisite data for 
implementing vehicle profiles, electric accessory loads, depot location, field data related to energy 
consumption, utility tariff and fleet duty cycles. This task will also define assumptions that will be used 
when performing the route power energy modeling and analysis. 

Anticipated Deliverables 

• Project kick-off meeting notes

7D Attachment 1 
TAC/CAC 2/27/23



Task 3. Route Power Energy Modeling and Analysis  
The consultant will perform block/route modeling to evaluate energy consumption for weekday and 
weekend service levels based on depot charging.  Model simulation will be based on the appropriate 
vehicle profile, operating hours, and operating miles with consideration of deadhead, elevation changes, 
vehicle loads, climate conditions and accessory loads. The modeling results will be used as foundation to 
provide recommendations on the zero emission bus routes and efficient ZEV operation.    

The model simulation will:  

1. Determine route ZEV feasibility of block schedules, 
2. Forecast energy consumption and duty cycles for target routes and vehicle block schedules, 
3. Forecast vehicle fueling/charging schedule to comply with next day operational needs, 
4. Project Peak Vehicle Requirements, 

In the case of battery electric vehicles (BEV), the Route/Power Analysis will also:  

1. Model and forecast the average and maximum kWh required to power the BEV fleet,  
2. Model and forecast the electrical power demand and charging schedule for depot based 

charging,  
3. Model and forecast the electrical power demand and charging schedule for on-route charging,  
4. Model and forecast the battery state of charge (SOC) for each block for each simulation profile, 
5. Forecast power delivery infrastructure needed, 
6. Forecast number of depot and on-route chargers required, 
7. Provide general footprint requirements to accommodate power delivery and charging 

infrastructure,  
 

In the case of hydrogen electric fuel cells (HFC), the Route/Power Analysis will also:  

1. Forecast the average and maximum hydrogen volume needed to power the HFC fleet.  
2. Provide high level logistics for four different types of fueling options; gas form, liquid form, 

reformed on-site and renewable hydrogen 
3. Forecast needed energy storage, generation and delivery infrastructure 
4. Provide general footprint requirements to accommodate fuel storage, generation and fueling 

delivery systems. 

Anticipated Deliverables  

• Memorandum of findings and analysis 

Task 4. Energy Charging and Storage Facilities Review and Recommendations  
The consultant will review existing facilities for power availability, energy storage and delivery systems 
and evaluate modifications needed to support both types of ZEV fleet as modeled in Task 3.     

Anticipated Deliverables  

• Memorandum of findings and recommendations   

Task 5. Fleet Maintenance Review and Recommendations   
Activities in this task will review fleet maintenance requirements and provide best practices based on 
the energy demand forecast, charging schedule, and battery/fuel profile generated from Task 3. The 



consultant will also research available ZEVs and provide a planning level comparison using criteria such 
as battery range, technology reliability, charging profile, capital cost and maintenance cost.   

Anticipated Deliverables 

• Memorandum of findings and recommendations of best practices 
• Table summarizing pertinent available ZEVs and associated equipment.   

Task 6. Financial Analysis  
This task will be completed to provide high-level capital cost estimates for the recommended fleet 
conversion, recommended energy charging and storage facility modifications. This includes annual and 
total life cycle electricity or fuel cost, annual and total life cycle maintenance cost, and any necessary 
training cost. In addition, the consultant will research a minimum of three potential funding sources or 
provide recommendation on [two] alternative funding finance mechanism for the project.  

Anticipated Deliverables  

• Start-up capital cost estimates 
• Forecast life cycle costs 
• Forecast annual operating cost 
• Summary of potential funding sources 

Task 7. Transition Plan 
Develop recommendations regarding the following: 

• Phasing in capital investments based on available revenue sources 
• Addressing costs associated with annual maintenance and operations 
• Identify skill gaps, training needs and retraining needs of existing work force to operate and 

maintain zero-emission vehicles and related infrastructure (to avoid displacement.) 

 

Task 8. Development of Zero Emission Fleet Transition Plan   
Based on results and recommendations drawn from abovementioned analyses and client directives, the 
consultant will develop a roadmap that outlines deployment strategies and identifies implementation 
priorities to achieve zero emission routes. The final report will incorporate elements listed above and 
summaries findings and recommendations. It is anticipated that there will be one round of Collier Area 
Transit review, the consultant will address comments from the review and prepare a final report.  

Anticipated Presentations 

• Public Transit Advisory Committee  
• Collier MPO Technical and Citizens Advisory Committee 
• Collier MPO 
• Collier County Board of County Commissioners  

Anticipated Deliverables  

• Draft Zero Emission Fleet Transition Plan 
• Final Zero Emissions Fleet Transition Plan  

 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
COMMITTEE ACTION 

ITEM 7E 
 

Endorse FDOT’s PM2 and PM3 Statewide Performance Targets 
 

 
OBJECTIVE: For the Committee to endorse FDOT’s PM2 and PM3 Statewide Performance Targets. 
 
CONSIDERATIONS:   

In September 2018, Collier MPO Board voted to support FDOT’s initial Statewide Pavement and Bridge 
Performance Targets (PM2) and System Performance Targets (PM3) instead of establishing targets of its 
own.  PM2 and PM3 Targets are applicable to the National Highway System (NHS) shown in Attachment 
1.  

By supporting the Statewide Targets, the MPO agreed to plan and program projects in the Transportation 
Improvement Program (TIP) that were anticipated to make progress towards achieving the Statewide 
Targets.  The two-year Targets for this First Performance Period reflected the anticipated performance 
levels at the end of Calendar Year (CY) 2019 while the four- year targets reflected the anticipated 
performance level at the end of CY 2021. 

With the conclusion of the First Performance Period, FDOT has now set two and four-year Statewide 
Targets for the Second Performance Period – January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2025. (Attachment 
2)  This requires Collier MPO to again take action to either support the Statewide Targets or establish targets 
of its own.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: That the Committee endorse FDOT’s PM2 and PM3 Statewide 
Performance Targets. 
 
Prepared By: Sean Kingston, MPO Principal Planner, MURP, AICP, CFM 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

1. National Highway System Map – Collier County 
2. FDOT PM2 and PM3 Statewide Targets for Second Performance Period 

 



Florida's National Highway System
Bonita Springs - 2/7/2023

§̈¦75 !(933293

!(29

!(45

£¤41

!(90

£¤41

§̈¦75

!(93

Bonita Springs

COLLIER

LEE

HENDRY

Naples Muni

Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, Intermap, increment P Corp., GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL, Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan, METI,
Esri China (Hong Kong), (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

Ü
0 2 4 6 81

Miles

Legend

Interstate

STRAHNET Route

STRAHNET Connector

Unbuilt

Other Principal Arterials

Intermodal Connector

MAP-21 Principal Arterials

Urban areas

The "final" NHS is under review by the FHWA and
the map may have minor revisions in the future.

Florida Department
of Transportation

Transportation Data & Analytics

7E Attachment 1
TAC/CAC 2/27/23



7E Attachment 2, TAC/CAC 2/27/23 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
DISTRIBUTION 

ITEM 10A 
 
 

 
Administrative Modifications to the FY 2023-2027 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 
 

 
OBJECTIVE: For the Committee to receive copies of administrative modifications to the FY 2023-2027 
TIP. 
 
CONSIDERATIONS:  FDOT has requested that Collier MPO administratively modify three projects in 
the 2023 – 2027 TIP: 
 
448065-2 Collier Area Transit Maintenance Building – the MPO Board approved adding $2,500,000 in 
SU funds in FY 2023 to this project at its December 9, 2022 meeting. (Attachment 1) 
 
441480-1 Eden Park Elementary – the MPO Board approved adding $800,000 in SU funds in FY 2023 
to this Safe Routes to Schools sidewalk project at its October 13, 2022 meeting. (Attachment 2) 
 
417540-6 SR 29 from N of New Market Rd to SR 82 – FDOT has added funds Preliminary Engineering 
(PE) in FY23, for Right of Way (ROW), Railroad & Utilities (RRU) in FY25, and Construction in FY 2027. 
(Attachment 3) 
 
FDOT’s letter, dated January 12, 2023, requesting the administrative modifications is shown in 
Attachment 4. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: N/A (distributed for informational purposes)   
 
Prepared By: Sean Kingston, MPO Principal Planner, MURP, AICP, CFM 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

1. Administrative Modification #1 Transit Maintenance Building 
2. Administrative Modification #2 Eden Park Elementary 
3. Administrative Modification #3 State Rd 29 N of New Market to SR82 
4. FDOT Request Letter Dated 1/12/23 

 



TIP Administrative Modification #1 for MPO Executive Director 
Approval to the FY 2023 through FY 2027 TIP 

Action FPN Project Name Description & 
Limits 

Requested 
By Fund Phase FY Amount 

FTAT-FHWA Transfer to 
FTA SU 448065-2 Collier Area Transit 

Maintenance Building N/A MPO FTAT CST 
(94) 23 $2,500,000 

FTAT-FHWA Transfer to 
FTA SU 448065-2 Collier Area Transit 

Maintenance Building N/A MPO SU CST 
(94) 23 $2,500,000 

Total 
$2,500,000 

Total Project Cost: TBD 

Responsible Agency: Collier County 

TIP Reference Page: H-6

LRTP Reference Page: Table 6-12 P6-24

COLLIER METROPOLITAN 
PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

Approved By:    Date: 12/9/22 

 Anne McLaughlin, MPO Executive Director 

10A Attachment 1
TAC/CAC 2/27/23



COLLIER MPO FY 2023 - 27 TIP

448065-2 COLLIER AREA TRANSIT MAINTENANCE BUILDING

Project Description: 2021 Transit Prioritiy Prior Years Cost: N/A
Future Years Cost: N/A

Work Summary: CONSTRUCTION Total Project Cost: N/A

Lead Agency: COLLIER COUNTY Length: NA 2045 LRTP: Table 6-12, P6-24

Phase Fund 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 Total
CST (94) FTAT 5,500,000 5,500,000
CST (94) SU 5,500,000 5,500,000

0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 11,000,000 0 0 0 0 11,000,000

Adopted 06/10/2022
Admin Mod #1 Approved 
12/9/22

H-6 SECTION H - TRANSIT



TIP Administrative Modification #2 for MPO Executive Director Approval 
to the FY 2023 through FY 2027 TIP 

Action FPN Project Name Description & 
Limits 

Requested 
By Fund Phase FY Amount 

Add SU funds to cover 
construction cost increase, 441480-1 Eden Park Elementary N/A MPO SU CST 23 $800,000 

Total Project Cost: $1,465,171 

Responsible Agency: Collier County 

TIP Reference Page: B-1

LRTP Reference Page: P6-2, Table 6-1

COLLIER METROPOLITAN 
PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

Approved By:    Date: 1/24/23 

 Anne McLaughlin, MPO Executive Director 

10A Attachment 2
TAC/CAC 2/27/23



4414801 EDEN PARK ELEMENTARY

Project Description: SOUTH SIDE OF CARSON RD FROM WESTCLOX TO CARSON LAKES CIR 6' SW Prior Years Cost: 56,027
Future Years Cost: 0

Work Summary: SIDEWALK Total Project Cost: 1,465,171

Lead Agency: COLLIER COUNTY Length: 0.75 2045 LRTP: P6-2, Table 6-1

Phase Fund 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 Total
CST SR2T 608,595 0 0 0 0 608,595
CST SU 800,000 0 0 0 0 800,000
PE SR2T 549 0 0 0 0 549

0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 1,409,144 0 0 0 0 1,409,144

Admin Mod #2 1/24/23

COLLIER MPO FY 2023 - 27 TIP

Eden Park 
Elementary School

Carson 

C
arso

n
 R

d

Westclox St.

Adopted 06/10/2022 B-1 SECTION B - SAFETY



TIP Administrative Modification #3 for MPO Executive Director Approval 
to the FY 2023 through FY 2027 TIP 

Action FPN Project Name Description & 
Limits 

Requested 
By Fund Phase FY Amount 

Add PE funding to FY23; 
Add ROW & RRU Phases to 
FY25; add funds to CST in 
FY27  

417540-6 SR 29 
N of New 

Market Rd to 
SR 82 

FDOT ACSA PE 23 $38,392 

ACNP ROW 25 $318,956 

DI ROW 25 $803,000 

DI RRU 25 $576,000 

: 
ACNP CST 27 $424,015 

DI CST 27 $2,456,187 

Page 1 of 2 

10A Attachment 3
TAC/CAC 2/27/23



Total Project Cost:  43,628,348 

Responsible Agency:  FDOT 

TIP Reference Page:  A-3 

LRTP Reference Page:  P6-2, Table 6-1 

COLLIER METROPOLITAN 
PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

Approved By:         Date: 1/24/23 

                  Anne McLaughlin, MPO Executive Director 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 2 of 2 



COLLIER MPO FY 2023 - 27 TIP

4175406 SR 29 FROM N OF NEW MARKET RD TO SR 82 SIS

Project Description: Widen from 2 to 4 lanes (one segment of larger project) Freight Priority Prior Years Cost: 40,396,898
Future Years Cost: 0

Work Summary: ADD LANES & RECONSTRUCT Total Project Cost: 79,220,816

Lead Agency: FDOT Length: 3.307 2045 LRTP: p6-2, Table 6-1

Phase Fund 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 Total
CST ACNP 0 0 0 0 4,504,002 4,504,002
CST DI 0 0 0 0 32,128,568 32,128,568
ENV TALT 380,000 0 75,000 0 0 455,000
PE ACSA 38,392 0 0 0 0 38,392
ROW ACNP 0 0 318,956 0 0 318,956
ROW DI 0 0 803,000 0 0 803,000
RRU D1 0 0 576,000 0 0 576,000
Total 418,392 0 1,772,956 0 36,632,570 38,823,918

Admin Mod #3 01/24/23

Immokalee

Adopted 06/10/2022 A-3 SECTION A - HIGHWAY CAPACITY ENHANCEMENT



www.fdot.gov 

Florida Department of Transportation
RON DESANTIS 

GOVERNOR 801 N. Broadway Ave, Bartow FL 33830 JARED W. PERDUE, P.E. 
SECRETARY 

January 12, 2023 

Mrs. Anne McLaughlin 
Executive Director 
Collier MPO 
2885 Horseshoe Dr S  
Naples, FL 34104 

RE: Request for Administrative Modification to Collier County Metropolitan Planning 
Organization’s FY 2022/23 – FY 2026-27 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). 

Dear Mrs. McLaughlin: 

The purpose of this letter is to request the Collier County Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) 
administratively modify the following projects in the FY2022/23 – 2026/27 TIP. 

441480-1   EDEN PARK ELEMENTARY 

Please adjust the funding amounts currently listed in your TIP to align with the below funding amounts. 
Construction phase funding has been added ($800,000 SU). 

10A Attachment 4
TAC/CAC 2/27/23



www.fdot.gov 
 

448065-2   COLLIER AREA TRANSIT MAINTENANCE BUILDING 
 
Please adjust the funding amounts currently listed in your TIP to align with the below funding amounts. 
$2,500,000 funds have been added. 
 

 
 
417540-6  SR 29 FROM N OF NEW MARKET RD TO SR 82 
Please adjust the funding amounts currently listed in your TIP to align with the below funding amounts. 
 

 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at (863) 272-2368. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Victoria Peters 
Community Liaison 

 


	Citizens Advisory Committee
	7A Combined.pdf
	7A Attachment 1.pdf
	resolution draft
	signature page draft
	P6-23, Table 6-12
	P6-23, Table 6-12
	P6-23, Table 6-12
	P6-23, Table 6-12

	Project Sheets draft 2
	FDOT Letter Collier STIP TIP Amendments January 2023


	7D Combined.pdf
	7D Attach 1 - Scope-Zero Emissions Plan.pdf
	Introduction
	Project Objectives
	Scope of Work
	Task 1. Project Management
	Task 2. Project Kick-off and Data Collection
	Task 3. Route Power Energy Modeling and Analysis
	Task 4. Energy Charging and Storage Facilities Review and Recommendations
	Task 5. Fleet Maintenance Review and Recommendations
	Task 6. Financial Analysis
	Task 7. Transition Plan
	Task 8. Development of Zero Emission Fleet Transition Plan



	10A Combined.pdf
	Attach 1 Mod 1.pdf
	Mod #1_Transit Maint. Bldg Signature Page_2.10.23
	FY 23-27 TIP_Project Sheet_AdminMod1_Transit Maint Bldg

	Attach 2 Mod 2.pdf
	Mod #2_Eden Park Elem_Signature Page
	Mod #2_Eden Park Elem_Project Sheet
	SAFETY


	Attach 3 Mod 3.pdf
	Mod #3_SR29 New Market to SR82_Signature Page
	TIP admin mod3 SR29 417540-6





